

CENTRAL STATES BOWLING ASSOCIATION OF THE DEAF

CONSTITUTION / 2016

ARTICLE 1 - NAME AND LOCATION:

This organization shall be known as the Central States Bowling Association of the Deaf (a.k.a. C.S.B.A.D.). The location of this organization shall exist in the states of Illinois, Indiana, Ohio, Michigan, Minnesota, Wisconsin, Eastern Iowa, Eastern Missouri, Northern Kentucky, Western New York, Western Pennsylvania and the lower part of Ontario (Canada) from Windsor to Toronto.

ARTICLE 2 - OBJECTIVES:

SECTION 1 - This organization shall conduct an annual tournament, "American Ten-Pins" of Central States Bowling Association of the Deaf on **last Friday of October (Can't have Halloween from Friday - Sunday) for the Joe Parisi Championship Qualify, the Senior Citizen Classic Qualify, Four Men Team, the Parisi Championship Bracket, the Singles & Double Events in the order.**

SECTION 2 - This organization shall encourage and foster among it's members and those interested in the sport, the spirit of good fellowship.

SECTION 3 - This tournament shall be governed by the rules and regulations outlined by the United States Bowling Congress (a.k.a. U.S.B.C.), with any additional rules deemed necessary.

ARTICLE 3 - MEMBERSHIPS:

There shall be two (2) classes of membership. Regular and Privileged.

ARTICLE 4 - OFFICERS:

SECTION 1 - The officers shall be a President, a Vice President, a Tournament Director, and a Tournament Chairperson.

SECTION 2 - The non officers shall be a Recording Secretary, and three (3) Auditors.

ARTICLE 5 - MEETINGS:

SECTION 1 - An Annual Board of Directors (Captains) meeting shall be held on the Friday night.

SECTION 2 - The Executive Committees (**The President, Vice-President, Tournament Director, Tournament Chairperson and CSWBAD Tournament Director**) meeting shall be held at least once a year before the annual Board of Directors (Captains) meeting.

SECTION 3 - Both meetings (The Executive Committees and the Board of Directors) shall be held either at the headquarter hotel, the Deaf Club or (Rental hall within 15 miles) from the Headquarter Hotel.

ARTICLE 6 - AMENDMENT:

This Constitution may be amended by a two-third (2/3) vote of all regular members voting at the regular meeting upon the recommendation of the Board of Directors. The proposed Amendment having been previously submitted in writing and read to the Organization at least sixty (60) days before being voted upon.

Note: The Suspension of the above Articles of this Constitution is prohibited

*** = It was voted and passed by the Board of Directors' meeting last year, effect this year unless in partheise.**

C.S.B.A.D. Guidelines

ARTICLE 1 - MEMBERSHIP:

SECTION 1 - REGULAR MEMBERSHIP: A regular membership must be available to any hearing loss of 55 DB or more citizen bowler and must provide full rights and privileges with no exclusions.

SECTION 2 - PRIVILEGED MEMBERSHIP: A privileged membership shall be available to any deaf or hard of hearing senior citizen bowler member who is over the age of sixty (60) and must provides full rights and privileges with no exclusions.

SECTION 3 - YEARLY DUES:

a) - The yearly dues for regular membership shall be governed and be set by C.S.B.A.D. and reported in the Guideline; Section 1 - p (page 8).

b) - The yearly dues for privileged membership shall be a fifty percent (50%) reduction of the regular member's yearly dues.

SECTION 4 - MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION: An applicant for membership shall complete (in black or blue ink) a C.S.B.A.D. bowling entry form furnished by the Tournament Director.

ARTICLE 2 - ELECTION OF OFFICERS:

SECTION 1 - The Elected Officers:

a) - An elected and/or re-elected officers shall be a bona fide resident of the C.S.B.A.D. as named in the Constitution, Article I.

b) - Elected Officers shall include a President, a Vice President and a Tournament Director.

SECTION 2 - The Non-Elected Officers; A Tournament Chairperson.

SECTION 3 - TIME OF ELECTIONS:

a) - Elected Officers shall be elected at the annual Regular Board of Directors meeting in November.

* b) - The President shall be elected in three year for a three (3) years term beginning February 1,2016.

* c) - The Vice President shall be elected in three year for a three (3) years term beginning February 1, 2015.

* d) - The Tournament Director shall be elected in a three year for a three (3) years term beginning February 1,2017.

e) - Any officers who have not bowled during the tournament for a good reason, shall be allowed to remain as an officer, with an approval of the Executive Committees.

SECTION 4 - ELECTION ELIGIBILITY:

a) - Any regular Board of Director (Captain) member in good standing for at least three (3) consecutive years before the election day shall be eligible for election.

b) - No elected officer shall hold more than one (1) elected office.

SECTION 5 - BALLOTS:

a) - The ballots shall elect all officers.

b) - A majority vote shall be necessary to be elected.

c) - If a majority vote is not reach on the first ballot with at least three (3) candidates, a second ballot involving the two (2) candidates with the highest numbers of votes from first ballot shall be taken and voted again.

SECTION 6 - OATH: The newly elected officers shall be sworn in immediately after their election and shall take office effective the month of January. The oath of the Officers is as follows:

"I do hereby pledge myself to abide by the Constitution and the By- Laws of C.S.B.A.D. and to faithfully perform the duties of my office to the best of my knowledge and ability"

SECTION 7 - RELINQUISHMENT: When officers relinquish their offices, all properties, papers and monies in good order belonging to the office of the President, Vice-President, Tournament Director, Tournament Chairperson, Hall of Fame Chairman, Recording Secretary and Auditors shall be turned over their respective successors.

ARTICLE 3 - DUTIES of the OFFICERS:

SECTION 1 - PRESIDENT SHALL:

a) - Be principal executive officer of C.S.B.A.D.

b) - Preside at all Executive Committees, Board of Directors and any other meetings of C.S.B.A.D.

c) - Enforce strict observance of C.S.B.A.D. Constitution, By-Laws and any rules.

d) - Countersign the minute's reports of all meetings.

e) - Keep the Bond of Treasurer's bank for safekeeping.

f) - Inform the Tournament Chairperson of the coming tournament at all expenses and related arrangements that are expected from C.S.B.A.D.

g) - Appoint the Tournament Chairperson.

h) - Appoint the Recording Secretary and two (2) Auditors (one from out of state and one from local) with an approval of the Tournament Director.

i) - Appoint vacant officers with the approval of the Executive Committees until next election.

SECTION 2 - VICE PRESIDENT SHALL:

- a) - Perform all the functions of the President in the President’s absence.
- b) - Be in charge of the Joe Parisi Championship Tournament.
- c) - Be in charge of the Senior Citizen Classic.
- d) - Acting as Chairman of Hall of Fame.
- e) - Oversee all necessary business or communication for the Joe Parisi Championship event.

SECTION 3 - TOURNAMENT DIRECTOR;

- a) - Keep the minutes of all Executive Committees, Board of Directors and special meetings of CSBAD and CSWBAD. Such minutes are to be dated and recorded in books with proper numbered.
 - b) - Keep copies of the Constitution, By-Laws and any rules.
 - c) - Make these minutes available when requested.
 - d) - Receive and keep an original register of members, regular and privileged.
 - e) - Keep the records of all scores made in all tournament held by CSBAD and CSWBAD
 - f) - Have charge of all CSBAD’s and CSWBAD’s books and records.
 - g) - Conduct necessary correspondence.
 - h) - Have sole charge of conducting the annual tournament with the approval of the Executive Committees
 - i) - Conduct the annual tournament along the lines as the United States Bowling Congress’s yearly event.
 - j) - Make own arrangements with assistants at the tournament city and hire necessary clerical help.
 - k) - Go to the tournament city to finalize plans, such as signing contracts with the bowling establishment, inspect the headquarter site and meet with local committees.
 - l) - Must review and the printed flyer proof two (2) years before the host city sends out to the public.
 - m) - Make room reservations and pay for all Executive Committees.
 - n) - Collect the cost of lodging from officers.
 - o) - Provide the bowler new identification number by using USBC’s Identification numbers.
 - p) - Have the history of all CSBAD and CSWBAD tournament, bowlers, etc and give to the Tournament Chairperson to be printed for the program book.
 - q) - Send the list of prize winners to each bowler who is in winner column.
 - r) - Set up the lanes assignments - First come, first serve to start with the middle of establishment. **Four Men Team** only.
 - s) - Mail out by postage or e-mail the Financial Report, Minutes of last meeting and lane assignments to all Bowler after receiving the entry forms.
- aa) - Act as **Treasurer** to open **separate account (to be known as the Central States Bowling Association of the Deaf and Central States Women’s Bowling Association of the Deaf)** in a reliable bank of his residence city.
 - bb) - Be bonded for the full amount of the bank deposits at the expense of CSBAD and **CSWBAD**
 - cc) - Have sole custody of all funds of CSBAD and **CSWBAD**.
 - dd) - Pay all the bills and state a purpose of each which are signed with the **CSBAD President and CSWBAD Tournament Director**.
 - ee) - Collect all donations, fees, dues, security, penalties, assessment and debts from members or any others and give receipts for the same amount.
 - ff) - Deposit in the account of all monies received from (“ee”)
 - gg) - Turn over to the Executive Committees a statement showing the outcome of the tournament by January 30th.
 - hh) - Make the fiscal year report to the Board of Directors at the meeting.
 - ii) - Be provided with authority to set the prize fees as he sees fit.
 - kk) - Determine the exact amount of the prizes.

ARTICLE 3 - DUTIES of the OFFICERS (Cont.)

*** SECTION 4 - TOURNAMENT CHAIRPERSON:**

- a) - Be appoint by the President.
- b) - Carry out and enforce all objectives of C.S.B.A.D.
- ~~e) - Settle any protests or disputes according to the Constitution and By-Laws. The final decision rests with the Executive Committees and must adhere to the U.S.B.C. Laws.~~
- ~~d) - Keep members fully informed of all new laws and their purpose.~~
- ~~c) - Send any proposals from the bowlers to the Executive Committees at least thirty (30) days before the Board of Directors meeting.~~
- ~~f) - Send the proposals that were passed by the Executive Committees to the Board of Directors to be considered for approval.~~
- ~~g) - Have the power to transact and / or oversee all necessary laws business or law communication in the interest of C.S.B.A.D. and with the Executive Committees of C.S.W.B.A.D. in order for the interest of C.S.W.B.A.D.~~

SECTION 5 - HALL of FAME Chairman (Vice-President) SHALL:

Appoint three (3) Committee members who are interested in the welfare of C.S.B.A.D. and establish the guidelines with an approval of the Executive Committees.

SECTION 6 - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES SHALL:

- * a) - Consist of the six (6) officers (Article 3- Section 1 thru 5) include **CSWBAD Tournament Director**.
- b) - Attend and vote with Board of Directors at any meetings of the body. However, any individual, whether he is a member of the Executive Committee, the Board of Directors or both may be allowed only one (1) vote on any question at such meeting.
- c) - Have the authority to transact all necessary business of CSBAD and CSWBAD between meetings
- d) - Recommend investment of CSBAD and CSWBAD from time to time.
- e) - Supervise the general and special funds.
- f) - Act as grievance committees whenever referred any complaints or disagreements between members. They shall report their results or make recommendations to the members. The decision will be final.
- g) - Have full power to act in any and all emergencies.
- h) - The President will vote as tied breaker.

SECTION 7 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL:

- a) - Be composed of all Executive Committees, a Representative, the General Chairman of present host tourney, the former officers, the bowlers and the Captains of all teams entered in the present tourney.
- b) - Be vested with the control and management of the annual tourney. By a majority vote (E.C., Rep., G.C. and Captains only), it may delegate its authority in whole part or in part to the Executive Committees.

SECTION 8 - RECORDING SECRETARY SHALL; (See Article 3-Section 1h)

- a) - Write the minutes of all kinds of meetings in the ink or typewritten in paged numbers and make the copies to be sent to each member of the Executive Committee for correction within thirty (30) days after the meeting. Collect the income only if finish job within 30 days.
- b) - Report on refund of security fund and any donations of the host city bid to financial reports.

SECTION 9 - AUDITOR SHALL; (See Article 3-Section 1h)

Examine and audit all the C.S.B.A.D. account and financial affairs of the present fiscal year with the Tournament Director and sign the Financial report any day before the Board of Directors meeting.

ARTICLE 4 - MEETINGS:

SECTION 1 - DATE and LOCATION:

- a) - The annual Board of Directors meeting shall be held in the tournament city, **(Read / Constitution - Article 5 / Section 3)** during the progress of a tournament on Friday night.
- b) - The Executive Committees meeting may be called by the President at his discretion and shall be held before the Board of Directors meeting. Notice of such meeting shall be sent in writing two (2) weeks prior to the meeting.
- c) - The Executive Committees meeting shall be on Friday morning or afternoon at the hotel.

SECTION 2 - QUORUM:

- a) - One-half (1/2) of all qualify regular member captains entered in the tournament who are present at the meeting on time shall constitute a quorum.
- b) - Two-third (2/3) majority of the qualify captains present may transact business of C.S.B.A.D.
- c) - In the absence of a quorum at any meeting, no business shall be officially transacted.
- d) - Any business may be suspended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of members present.

SECTION 3 - ORDER of BUSINESS:

The regular order of business of C.S.B.A.D. shall be as follows:

- 1) - Pledge to the flag
- 2) - Silent prayer (if needed)
- 3) - Roll call
- 4) - Reading of all minutes and financial reports
- 5) - Reports of officers (in orders) President, Vice-President, CSBAD Tournament Director, CSWBAD Tournament Director & Tournament Chairperson
- 6) - Reports of committees or chairman of present tourney
- 7) - Election of officer(s)
- 8) - New business (new proposals from Executive Committees must be approval by the Board of Directors members)
- 9) - Selection of tournament city
- 10) - Announcements, subject to the approval of the President
- 11) - Adjournment

SECTION 4 - AMENDMENTS:

- a) - Any proposals of change or add the laws, amendments or rules must be made in written to the Vice-President during the new business and until at least fifteen (15) days before the Board of Directors meeting, Vice-President shall send copies of proposals to the Executive Committees at least thirty (30) days before the Board of Directors meeting and this Committees shall discuss and vote on the proposals before the Board of Directors meeting starts.
- b) - The Guidelines and rules may be amended or repealed by a majority vote of the Executive Committees the Board of Directors members vote at the Board of Directors meeting.

ARTICLE 5 - DISSOLUTION:

SECTION 1 - TEAM DECLINATION:

- a) - In the event that the **Four-Men teams** of C.S.B.A.D. should dwindle to **twenty four** (24) bowlers or fewer, the question of dissolution shall be submitted to the membership for consideration.
- b) - Special notice shall be given to every member at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting. Turnover shall specifically state the questions of dissolution that will be taken up at the meeting.
- c) - The affirmative vote of at least two-third (2/3) of the members in good standing shall be required to pass such a motion of dissolution.

SECTION 2 - PROPERTIES:

- a) - Whenever the members of C.S.B.A.D. shall vote for dissolving C.S.B.A.D., the officers shall dispose of all furniture, fixtures and any personal property belonging to C.S.B.A.D.
- b) - C.S.B.A.D. shall pay back the future hosts who have deposited with C.S.B.A.D.
- c) - C.S.B.A.D. shall pay all outstanding obligations and debts in full.

SECTION 3 - DONATION:

After obligations in Article 5 - Section 2-b & c have been meet. All monies, bonds, certificates or any property belong to C.S.B.A.D. left over upon dissolution shall turned over to the Great Lakes Deaf Bowling Association (a.k.a G.L.D.B.A.), shall place such monies, certificates and bonds into it's endowment fund for three (3) years. The income and interest derived there from is to be used to defray the G.L.D.B.A. expense that can be recognized by CSBAD.

ARTICLE 6 - TOURNAMENT CITY:

*** SECTION 1 - C.S.B.A.D. SHALL:**

- a) - It must be located in the territory described in C.S.B.A.D. 's Constitution Article - 1. (Page 1)
- b) - Provide an U.S.B.C. certified establishment having at least twenty four (24) alleys. A letter signed by the management of establishment verifying the exact numbers of alleys reserved, also the dates and time.
- c) - Be required to have Saturday night's entertainment located in the headquarters' hotel or at the Rental Hall within 15 miles, which must provide a minimum capacity of fifty (50) reserved rooms. The ballroom must have a minimum capacity of one hundred fifty (150) or more persons. A letter signed by the management from the establishment verifying the date will be required.
- d) - Be given the opportunity of placing the bids before the Board of Directors by each city who nominated with their propositions.
- e) - Be decided by ballot at the annual Board of Directors meeting held during the progress of the tournament. Said selection is for three (3) years or more in advance.
- f) - Win the bid by a majority vote. If a majority vote is not reached on a first ballot, a second ballot involving the two (2) nominees with the highest number of votes from first ballot shall be taken.
- g) - See the **Guidelines / Expenditures: Section 2 - a to e)**. (Page 8)

SECTION 2 - C.S.B.A.D. SHALL:

- a) - See **Guidelines / Expenditures: All of the Section 2.** (Page 8)
- b) - Tournament Chairperson must bring their proof printed publicity flyers to the C.S.B.A.D. Tournament Director for an approval two (2) years before the date of their tournament.
- c) - Have the Tournament Chairperson submit monthly reports of it's progress to the C.S.B.A.D. Tournament Director beginning with the month of May preceding the tournament.
- d) - Send out the advertising matter of the forthcoming tournament at least ninety (90) days prior to the date of the tournament.
- e) - State guaranteed cash prizes for first place of each event and circulated said statement.
- f) - Field an extra team to make possible an even number of entries, should an odd-number of teams in a tournament occur. The C.S.B.A.D. is to pay for the alley fees of said team, which will be ineligible for any share of the prize list. The captain of the mixed team shall be selected by the Tournament Director.

ARTICLE 7 - MISCELLANEOUS:

SECTION 1 - BOWLER SHALL:

- a) - Be a member of the U.S.B.C. If not, he must pay the membership fee to the C.S.B.A.D. Tournament Director and provide the true highest average. Not be eligible to compete more than once in any event.
- b) - Pay half of ballroom cost but maximum will be \$12.00. (Minimum \$9.00)
- c) - Uses last year's average regardless of 21 games this year. If he does not have last year's average, must use this year's average with minimum of 21 games. If no average, then bowled the actual score without handicap.
- d) - Use the last three-year average of CSBAD with a 10 pins rule (either league or CSBAD whichever is higher will be used). There will be Minimum of 8 games a year from the CSBAD's tourney.
- e) - A bowler's CSBAD average for the previous 3 years is 10 or higher pins than last season's or present average. CSBAD average must be used.
 - * #1 / 8 games out of 3 years average are divide by 1/3 pin.
 - * #2 / 16 games out of 3 years average are divide by 2/3 pins.
- f) - Not is a member of Professional Bowler Association (a.k.a. P.B.A.). If he has left P.B.A. more than a year, he may bowl scratch for three (3) years before starting to use the regular average with handicaps.
- g) - No high school boy is to participate in this tournament.
- h) - Forfeit his entry fee and prize winnings if he falsified the average and did not report any prize winnings within the past twelve (12) months.
- i) - Dress in a shirt with a collar and sleeves and trousers, approved by the Executive Committee. No cap or hat is allowed.

SECTION 2 - BOWLING EVENTS:

- a) - The events will occur on the following days: Friday Afternoon - Parisi Champ Qualify and Senior Citizen Classic. Saturday - the Joe Parisi Championship Event, Senior Citizen Classic Events, 4 Men Team Event and Parisi Champ Bracket. Sunday Single and Double Events in order.
- b) - The bowler's handicap shall be based on eighty percent (80%) (By calculator or computer) of the difference between his average and 220.
- c) - No individual handicap shall exceed **56 pins per game** per event except the Joe Parisi Champ.
- d) - **Any earning \$300 or more shall be rerated.**
- e) - The deadline for the entry of **Four (4) Men Team**, and Singles except the Joe Parisi Championship and Senior Citizen Classic shall be at least twenty one (21) days prior to the tournament date start.
- f) - A bowler must play on the **Four Men Team, Single and Double**.
- g) - The Captain of team will be responsible to communicate the dress code as mention in ARTICLE 7 Section-1-i (page 6) to their bowlers, if the captain does not communicate the dress code to the bowlers, and he will be fined \$5.00.
- h) - No team or individual shall be entitled to a refund after the entry blank and fees have been received by the Tournament Director. In case of illness or death, a bowler or team may be replaced anytime prior to the tournament.
- * i) - Collect \$100 for 800 Series
- * j) - Collect \$100 for 300 game per tournament.

SECTION 3 - THE JOE PARISI CHAMPIONSHIP EVENT:

- a) - Bowler who bowls in all events in the C.S.B.A.D. annual tournament are eligible to bowl in the Joe Parisi Champ. event.
- b) - Shall be held in conjunction with the annual tournament on a handicap basis.
- c) - The handicap is limited to **40 pins** per game and based on eighty percent (80%) (By calculator or computer) of the difference between the bowler's average and 220.
- d) - All games bowled are counted toward standings for the prize monies.
- e) - We shall have a qualifying round on Friday and bowler(s) will be able to re-entry on Saturday if desired. This is based upon the availability of the bowling alleys.
- f) - "Re-Entry" - Bowlers may bowl more than once but only cash prize once. Cost of Re-Entry shall be \$50.00
- g) - The qualifying rounds of the Joe Parisi Championship tournament must start on Friday afternoon and/or Saturday before the **four (4) man team** event completed.
- h) - The deadline for entry shall be at least thirty (30) minutes prior to the start.
- i) - Bowlers are recommended to pay the entry fee with the regular team entry form at least twenty one (21) days before the tournament start otherwise, they should pay the penalty fee of ten dollars (\$10.00) for a late entry fee between the team deadline and thirty (30) minutes before the start of the tournament. The penalty fees will be use for the prizes toward the Parisi Championship.
- j) - This tournament is conducted like the U.S.B.C. Masters except that the qualifying rounds is limited to three (3) games across six (6) lanes.
- k) - **If any bowler did not involved or re-entry next day can't have desperado.**
- k) - After the Team Event, the top 8, 16, 32 or 64 qualifiers shall bowl in the match play rounds to double elimination until there is one (1) bowler left.
- l) - The Bracket seeds will be based tops half to be in bracket seed (1st on top, 2nd on bottom, vice versa). The bottom half bowlers to bowl against top half seeds will be made by drawing by the bowlers in bottom half seeds.
- m) -In case of tie, the bowler must bowl whole game to break tie.

n) - First place will collect at least **fifteen** dollars **(\$15.00)** per head prize as per total of bowlers entered. **The minimum shall be Four Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$450).**

o) -The prize monies will be given on Saturday night in the ballroom to the bowlers who are in qualifier rounds.

p) - CSBAD will withhold \$100.00 for those who win Joe Parisi Championship for next year and pay him back if show up.

q) - If he does not show up, 50/50 goes to General Fund and Joe Parisi Fund.

SECTION 4 - SENIOR CITIZEN CLASSIC: (Must have minimum of 8 Bowlers / Paid in entry form, not count walk in)

a) - Bowlers must be at least fifty five (55) years old on or before Tournament start to be qualified for the Senior Citizen Classic. (3 Games across 6 lanes). **The Handicap will be same as the team.**

b) - Bowler's average (Aged 55 - 65) must be 201 or less to be eligible for the Senior Citizen Classic.

c) - Bowlers who bowl in **Four Men team** event except the Joe Parisi Championship, in the annual tournament are eligible in the Senior Citizen Classic.

d) - We shall have a classic on Friday and bowler(s) will be able to re-entry on Saturday if desired. This is based upon the availability of the bowling alleys.

f) - "Re-Entry" - Bowlers may bowl twice but only cash prize once. Cost of Re-Entry shall be \$40.00

EXPENDITURES:

SECTION 1 - C.S.B.A.D. SHALL:

a) - Pay the sum of twenty-five cents (.25) per mile to the President, and Tournament Director and the Tournament Chairperson for their transportation expenses for any reason affiliate with this organization.

b) - Pay **two (2)** nights for all Executive Committees (5). Article 5 - Section 2

c) - Pay the Tournament Director the sum of **One Dollar (1.00)** and the Cleric helpers twenty cents (.20) from each bowler per event entered except the Joe Parisi Championship.

d) - Pay the Vice President the sum of **One Dollar (1.00)** and the cleric helpers forty cents (.40) from each bowler entered the Joe Parisi Championship and Senior Citizen Classic.

e) - Pay three (3) Auditors fifteen dollars (\$15.00) each.

f) - Pay the Recording Secretary twenty five dollars (\$25.00), if finish job within 30 days.

g) - Have the Tournament Director make room reservations for all Executive Committees.

h) - Use the interest earned from the host donation fund, prize fees collected and the regular saving account to award the winners, the exact amount of the prizes to be determined by the Secretary / Treasurer.

i) - Held the balance of six hundred dollars (\$600.) in the General Fund to be used for accruing expenses. When and if, the fund reaches beyond that sum at the end of the fiscal year (March 30), with an approval of the Executive Committees, the excess may revert to the prize list of the next tournament.

j) - Determine the tournament expense amount, maximum to be four dollars (\$4.00) per event.

k) - Collect the prize fee based on per event; minimum fee is eight dollars (\$8.00) per event.

l) - Entry fees (prize, expense and alley) total per event shall be in dollars bracket. If have the coins, add extra coins for prize fee to made it in dollar bracket.

m) - Separate the bowling and tournament expense fees from the entry fees.

n) - Collect five dollars (\$5.00) and kept from each bowler for the member due..

o) - Collect five dollars (\$5.00) and kept from each Bowler for the registration fees.

p) - Collect \$9.00 to \$12.00 (Ballroom admission) and kept from the bowlers.

q) - Not be responsible for any debt incurred by the host city. This agreement shall be printed in the contract between the C.S.B.A.D. and the host city.

SECTION 2 - HOST CITY SHALL:

a) - The prize money is distributed based on a total counts of both men and women bowlers, toward prize fee funds.

b) - **The Minimum total of prizes for Men and Women Handicap Team, Single and Double be two thousand dollars (\$2,000.00)**

c) - Donate the award plaques to all winners in actual pin fall in the **Four Men Team**, Single, Double all-event, and Parisi Championship and Senior Citizen Classic. In case of tie, HOST CITY shall award plaques to the co-champions.

d) - Award other plaques to other winners of Handicap events, if HOST City desire.

e) - Be responsible for printing costs of the day, the schedule, the prize list, statistics of bowler's records of the tournament, the advertising, stationary & any expenses in program book say 5 1/2 by 8 1/2 maximum size.

f) - Be responsible for the mailing expenses of the program booklets to the Executive Committees and the Captains. Sufficient copies shall be supplied to the C.S.B.A.D. Secretary / Treasurer.

g) - Earn proceed from the sale of the fan combo and program booklets which shall become the property of the **Host City.**

HALL of FAME Guidelines

SECTION 1 - HALL of FAME:

- a) - Be split into three (3) territories and two (2) categories.
- b) - Three (3) territories:
 - 1) - Territory # 1 cover the Eastern Zone, Western New York, Western Pennsylvania and Ohio.
 - 2) - Territory # 2 covers the Michigan, Indiana and Northern Kentucky.
 - 3) - Territory # 3 covers the Minnesota, Wisconsin, Illinois, Eastern Iowa and Eastern Missouri.
- c) - Two (2) Categories:
 - 1) - Leaderships (See Constitution, Article 4 - Section 1), page 1.
 - 2) - The bowlers.
- d) - Inducted to the Hall of Fame every two (2) years during the odd year. (1 leadership and 3 bowlers if possible)
- e) - Shall start discuss the nominees during the even year after the CSBAD's tournament and be done at least thirty (30) days before the odd year tournament.
- f) - Must participate in any events at least eight (8) times and at least eight (8) years to be eligible with under circumstance can happen.
- g) - Must bowl all of the CSBAD's events, (Team, Single and Double), to be eligible.

SECTION 2 - AUTOMATIC BERTH to the HALL of FAME, the BOWLER shall:

- a) - Section 1 - f and g, above are required
- b) - Bowl 300 actual score game in any events, include the Parisi Championship.
- c) - Bowl 800 actual score series in any events, include 1st three (3) games of the Parisi Championship qualify round.
- d) - Be in 1st place in the Parisi Championship three (3) times or two (2) consecutive years.
- e) - Be in 1st place in the Single event and, or All Events actual score series for six (6) times.

SECTION 3 - HALL of FAME CHAIRMAN (Vice-President) shall:

- a) - Appoint three (3) committees, one (1) each from the territory with an approval of the President.
- b) - Receive all of the Leaderships' and the bowlers' statistics from the Secretary/Treasurer every year.
- c) - Sort the leaderships' and the bowlers' statistics into three (3) territories.
- d) - Send the separate resume of the leaderships' and the bowlers' statistics to each committee of his project territory to be preview.
- e) - Nominated one (1) "Outsider" bowler who is not bona fide residence of CSBAD.
- f) - After receive the nominates from the committees at least sixty (60) days before the odd year tournament. He must mail thirteen (13) or less nominates, three (3) bowlers and one (1) leadership if possible from each committees and one (1) from the Hall of Fame Chairman to the present Executive Committees and all former officers (Article 4 - Section 1) into two (2) categories, (Leadership and Bowlers) at least forty five (45) days for the final voting.
- g) - The voting from the present Executive Committees and past officers will base on the points of 5 for 1st place, 3 for 2nd place and 1 for 3rd place. The voting from the Executive Committees and former officers shall be complete at least thirty (30) days before the Odd year tournament.
- h) - Bring all resumes from the committees and the ballots from the Executive Committees and former officers voting with him to Executive Committees meeting to be verification by the Executive Committees.
- i) - Be with the President to make the announcement and introduced the leadership and, or the bowlers who inducted during the ballroom entertainment.
- j) - Give free pass of ballroom to Hall of Famers.

SECTION 4 COMMITTEES shall:

- a) - Work on different territory (Can't work on his own territory).
- b) - Receive the leaderships' and the bowlers' statistics forms from the Hall of Fame Chairman.
- c) - Nominate one (1) leadership and three (3) bowlers of your project territory, which you selected to work on with explanation why select your nominate and returns the form with letter notes to the Hall of Fame Chairman at least sixty (60) days before the CSBAD's tournament on even year. (Also read Section 1 - e, above)